8:32: 51 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair

HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 14, 2014
8:32 a.m

Stoltze called the House Finance Conmittee neeting

to order at 8:32 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve
Representati ve

ALSO PRESENT

Co-Chair
Vice-Chair

Bill Stoltze,
Mar k Neuman,
Ma Costello
Bryce Edgnon
Les Gara
David Guttenberg
Cat hy Munoz

St eve Thonpson
Tanm e W1 son

Al an Austernman, Co-Chair

Li ndsey Hol nes

Representative Paul Seaton; Candace Wnkler, CEO Al aska
Communi ty Foundation; Nancy DeCherney, Executive Director,
Juneau Arts and Humanities Council; Jordan Marshall,
Ext er nal Affairs Manager , Rasmnuson Foundat i on; Dan
DeBartol o, Permanent Fund Division Drector; M. Chris
Christensen 111, Associate Vice President for State
Rel ations, University of Al aska.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

M ke Wal sh, Vice President,

SUMVARY

HB 75

House Fi nance Committee 1

For aker G oup.

CONTRI BUTI ON FROM PFD: AUDI TS; UNI VERSI TY

03/14/14 8:32 A M



HB 75 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

#hb75
HOUSE BILL NO. 75

"An Act repealing certain audit requirenents for
entities receiving contributions from permanent fund
di vidends; requiring each canmpus of the University of
Alaska to apply to be included on the contribution
l[ist for contributions from permanent fund dividends;
and requiring a university to pay an application fee
for each canmpus separately listed on the contribution
list for contributions from permanent fund dividends."

8:33:46 AM
REPRESENTATI VE PAUL SEATON introduced the bill. He stated
that the bill changed the provision related to the Pick,

Click, Gve canpaign and the Pernmanent Fund. He noted that
the canmpaign had an audit provision for a non-profit
organi zation with a budget greater than $250 thousand. The
audit required a Certified Public Accountant (CPA), which
cost approximately $7 thousand to $12 thousand. Most non-
profit organizations did not earn the anmunt spent on the
audit participating in the canpaign. He pointed out that
the federal requirenments were different. He nentioned
probl ens encountered by non-profit organizations throughout
the state. He offered to answer nenbers' questions.

Co-Chair Stoltze OPENED public testinony.

8:37:17 AM

M KE WAL SH, VI CE PRESI DENT, FORAKER GROUP (via
tel econference), appreciated the efforts to allow greater
accessibility to the Pick, dick, Gve canpaign. He
advocated for the aspirations of HB 75 via the Foraker
Goup. He wished to elimnate the barrier of the audit
requi renent for snaller organizations. He appreciated the
value of the audit requirenent, but hoped to elimnate the
obstacles related to state requirenents. H's group
advocated for tying the state requirenent to federal
requirenents; a federal audit would suffice the state
requirenent in situations where an organization required
it.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 03/ 14/ 14 8:32 A M



8:40: 00 AM

Co-Chair Stoltze clarified M. Wal sh's nanme and position.

M. Wl sh responded that he was the vice president of the
For aker G oup.

8:40:51 AM

CANDACE W NKLER, CEO, ALASKA COVMUNI TY FOUNDATION, stated
her foundation had nine affiliates throughout the state.
She nmentioned that the foundation housed and managed the
outreach and coordination for the Pick, Cick, Gve project
fund. She stated that the foundation served as a
beneficiary agency. She also served on the Foraker
operations board with other non-profit organization |eaders
around the state. She spoke to the record participation
rates above 6 percent; the program was full of potential to
support all non-profit organizations around the state. She
concurred with M. Walsh regarding the audit requirenents
and his suggestion related to the federal audit. She added
the potential for enhancenents to the program offered by
the university system

8:43:58 AM

Ms. W nkler discussed the Foraker operations board' s survey
coordinating with participating non-profit organizations.
She noted the critical value of coordination and outreach
determ ned by the survey. She stated that the best strategy
for sustainability required a 7 percent fee acconpani ed by
donations that would help to support the program The
strategy was deened reasonable for sustaining the effort.

Co-Chair Stoltze noted that the Rasnuson foundation had a
three year conmtnent to adm nistrate the canpaign

Ms. Wnkler agreed and pointed out that the Rasnuson
foundation invested heavily in the first three years to
ensure that the state did not incur adm nistrative expenses
for the program The recent $250 filing fee was provided to
the state to manage the program

Co-Chair Stoltze asked about sustainability. He wondered

about the threshold for supporting the ~canpaign in
perpetuity.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 03/ 14/ 14 8:32 A M



Ms. Wnkler replied that activity outside of the state was
supported by private philanthropy, which hel ped individua
non-profit organizations to build their individual donor
pool. She stressed that the corporate funders would
eventually nove on, which was why the non-profit sector
must create a proactive nechanismto address the issue.

8:47: 30 AM

Representative Gara was confortable wth private sector
managenent of the program He asked about the portion of
donations required for non-profit organizations to help
fund the canpaign

Ms. Wnkler explained that a 7 percent donation was
di scussed. She pointed out that a website donation would
require a 3 percent charge for the transaction cost. The
current practice was no transaction cost for non-profit
organi zations. She noted that nost organizations recognized
that a cost was associated wth fundraising or other
activities.

8:48: 59 AM

Representative Gara recognized that the bill did not
i mpl enent the additional 7 percent for transaction costs
He asked about the authority to inpose the cost.

Ms. Wnkler replied that the bill would require an
amendnent inposing the transaction cost. She spoke in favor
of potential enhancenents to the proposed | egislation.

Representative Gara asked if the noney would be routed to
t he Permanent Fund.

Ms. Wnkler suggested that when individuals donated through
the canpaign, the Departnment of Revenue would receive an
aggregate anount along with the donation details and pass
the funds on to the United Way, who woul d provide the funds
to the various non-profit organizations. United Way woul d
assess the 7 percent for the project fund for the
continuation of the canpaigns efforts. The goal was for
program sustainability, which nmght take another three to
five years.

8:50: 35 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 03/ 14/ 14 8:32 A M



Co-Chair Stoltze imagined that the funds would not be
comngled with the state treasury.

Representative Edgnon asked about statistics related to
rural Al aska contri butions.

Ms. Wnkler was unsure about the rural Al askan statistics.

Representative Edgnon understood that sonme of the non-
profit organizations originated fromrural Al aska.

Ms. Wnkler added that the non-profits profited because
affiliates in the rural areas profited.

8:52: 06 AM

NANCY  DECHERNEY, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, JUNEAU ARTS AND
HUVANI TITES COUNCIL stated that her organization had not
benefited from the campaign, as their budget was slightly
over the anmount required for an audit. She testified in
favor of the |egislation.

Ms. DeCherney wunderstood that the bill was heard in
committee in previous sessions.

Representative Minoz pointed out that if the financial
audit requirement were elimnated, the accountability
requi renments woul d renain.

Ms. DeCherney wunderstood that all of the non-profit
organi zations required a 990 tax docunent with the Internal
Revenue Service for eligibility in the canpaign. She stated
that the profit and |oss were reviewed. She stated that the
cost for the audit would be $8 thousand for her
organi zation, which would be a greater <cost than the
benefit received from participating in the canpaign. She
nmenti oned that her organization would be happy to provide 7
percent of a donation for adm nistrative needs.

8:55: 00 AM

Representative Thonpson asked if a 990 tax docunent filed
by a non-profit organi zation nust be signed and approved by
a CPA.

Ms. DeCherney concurred.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 03/ 14/ 14 8:32 A M



8:55:39 AM

JORDAN  MARSHALL, EXTERNAL AFFAIRS  MANAGER, RASMUSON
FOUNDATI ON, stated that he hel ped inplenment the program He
noted that the canpaign contributors' nanmes were held
anonynous, making it difficult to answer Representative
Edgnon's questions about contributions from rural Al aska.
He explained that the data available indicated equivalent
partici pation throughout the state.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked for a response to Ms. Whnkler's
t esti nony.

M . Mar shal | not ed t hat t he Rasmuson f oundat i on
participated in a Pick, Cick, Gve group with each partner
agreeing in the goal of sustainability. He recognized that
86 percent of participating organizations felt that the
statewi de coordination and outreach contributed to the
success of the program

8:58:34 AM

Representative Gara asked if a statute was necessary when
the United Way provided adm nistration for the program

M. Marshall replied that the collection of fees worked
nost effectively as part of a statute.

Co-Chair Stoltze understood that dues were nore difficult
t o obtain.

M. Marshall credited the program for its efficient
oper at i ons.

Co-Chair Stoltze wunderstood that the premse of the
canpaign was simlar to the process proposed by the
| egi sl ation and the di scussed adm nistrative fee.

M. Marshal |l agreed.

9:00:16 AM

DAN DEBARTOLO, PERMANENT FUND DIVISION DIRECTOR was
avai | abl e to answer questi ons.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked about the application process and
the fiscal framework

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 03/ 14/ 14 8:32 A M



M. DeBartolo replied that the bill would have no effect on
t he division's m ssi on or oper ati ons rel ated to
applications or dividends. He noted no fiscal inpact from
the bill. The $250 fee collected during the application
process was routed to the Departnent of Revenue's account
for adm nistrative costs related to the canpaign. He stated
that programers were not a conponent of the division's
purview. The division contracted wth United Wy who
recei ved the program applications to vet the organizations,
tax docunents and audit material s.

M. DeBartolo discussed the division's expenditure of $40
thousand for the contracted services from United Way. He
understood that the contract rate was scheduled to increase
in 2014. The division was authorized a portion of the fees
col |l ected; the balance received was used for admnistrative
costs. The division spent the funds received on
programers' hourly wages.

9:04: 30 AM

Representative Costello asked about an organization that
was mstakenly left off of the list this year.

M. DeBartolo was unaware of an organization that was
m stakenly renoved fromthe list. He stated that the audit
requi renents were sonetines a problemand led to a decrease
in the listing of nanes. He stated that sone organizations
m ssed the filing deadline.

9: 06: 03 AM

Representative Costello asked about the application
process.

M. DeBartolo responded that the application process began
in the beginning of the year and was the sanme as the
di vidend application window. If the applications were |ate,
they were renoved fromthe I|ist.

9: 06: 55 AM

Representative Thonpson asked about programers  and
application fees. He asked about the hourly rate and
benefits.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 03/ 14/ 14 8:32 A M



M. DeBartolo replied that rate was based on the nean
programer salary. The programers tracked their hours and
multiplied them by the rate paid by the division. He was
unsure about benefits.

Represent ati ve Thonpson requested an answer about benefits.

9:08: 07 AM

Representative WIlson asked if the departnent supported the
bill.

M. DeBartolo replied yes.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked if the division was ready to absorb
the cost w thout the help of philanthropists.

M. DeBartolo replied that he was not authorized to provide
an answer.

Co-Chair Stoltze wondered about an estinmated rate to
sustain t he managemnent of t he program wi t hout
phi | ant hropi sts. He asked if 7 percent would suffice.

M. DeBartolo replied that the division would require a
gross contribution of greater than 7 percent.

Co-Chair Stoltze appreciated the director's candor.

9:10: 17 AM

Representative Gara thought that if the United Way was able
to admnistrate for less than 7 percent, they m ght provide
a better option.

M. DeBartolo agreed that the United Way was the best
entity to provide the adm nistrative service.

9:11: 24 AM

MR CHRIS CHRISTENSEN 111, ASSOCIATE VICE PRESIDENT FOR
STATE RELATIONS, UNIVERSITY OF ALASKA, appreciated the
university's ability to participate in the canpaign. He
noted that the university raised approximtely $6 thousand
to $28 thousand through the canpaign. He pointed out that
ExxonMbbi | had generously of fered to mat ch t he
contributions. The university foundation had agreed to use

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 03/ 14/ 14 8:32 A M



private noney to pay the application fees for participation
in the programfor the first year.

Representative Gara asked if the  bill required an
application fee for each canpus.

M. Christensen replied that a fee was required from each
canpus that chose to participate.

Representative Gara asked if the university would allow an
interested canmpus to participate.

M. Christensen believed that the application would be
al | owed.

9:14: 24 AM

Representati ve Edgnon asked about the Bristol Bay Canpus.
He wondered if the noney would flow through the Fairbanks
canpus if the Bristol Bay canpus chose to partici pate.

M. Christensen replied that he would provide the answer to
the conmttee at a | ater date.

Representative WIson did not see the benefit in listing
i ndi vi dual universities.

M. Christensen replied that contributors appreciated the
ability to direct donations to individual prograns or
canpuses.

Co-Chair Stoltze recalled prior testinmnony related to
fundraising in a previous session.

M. Christensen stated that the contri buti ons were directed
toward individual canpuses.

9:17: 08 AM

Representative Gara comented that the process mght |ead
to zero profit for the university.

Co- Chai r Stoltze believed that appropriators viewed
donati ons as an endorsenent rather than a detri nent.

Representative Gara hoped that donations from the canpaign
woul d not | essen university appropriations.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 03/ 14/ 14 8:32 A M



M. Christensen replied that such a practice would
di scourage private giving.

9:19: 07 AM

Co-Chair Stoltze CLOSED public testinony.

Representative Seaton supported nost of the sustainability
ideas discussed in the hearing. He was unaware of an
organi zation refusing to participate if the 7 percent
adm nistrative fee was inplenented. He clarified that the
university would apply by canmpus. He noted 30 letters
supporting the bill, which were included in nenbers

packets.

Co-Chair Stoltze enjoyed the variety of testinony and
| ooked forward to working with the adm nistration.

Representative Costello added that Bill Thomas was
instrumental in the program She enjoyed the use of the
word "enhancenent” versus "proposed anendnent” by Ms.
W nkl er during her testinony.

9:22: 57 AM

Representati ve Thonpson appreciated the bill's intent, the
updates and the sponsor's efforts. He stated that his wfe
owned a CPA practice.

Co-Chair Stoltze believed that it was useful to declare the
i ssues and interests of conm ttee menbers.

HB 75 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ OURNIVENT

9:24: 47 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 9:24 a.m

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 03/ 14/ 14 8:32 A M



